
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 
CALLED MEETING AGENDA 

****COMMISSIONER’S METING ROOM, GROUND FLOOR**** 
MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 

June 30, 2022 
6:00 p.m. 

 
  

I. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – SHEILA G. JONES     
DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY, CHAIR     

DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN     

DISTRICT 4 – GERALD STUNKEL – VICE-CHAIR     

DISTRICT 5  - STEVEN LEDFORD     

  

 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

III.    Invocation – District 5 
         

 IV.    Approval of Agenda 
            

 V.      Consent Agenda –  
 

VI.   Public Hearing  
Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 
ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County 
Commissioners.  Following the public hearing, the Board of Commissioners will take action on each 
item presented below.  
 

 1.  A Public Hearing will be held for the Extension of an Existing Moratorium on the   
             acceptance of Residential Preliminary Plat applications. 

 
 
 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten 
(10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens,  county employees or other events by the 
Commissioners.   
 

 
 
The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission 
for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please  
be courteous of the 3 minute time limit. Comments noted from citizens via the Jasper County FB Page. 

IX. County Commissioner Items  
 

X.   Regular Agenda 

 

VIII. Citizens Comments 

VII. Presentations/Delegations 



XIII. Executive Session 

Business Items: 
 

1. Extension of current Moratorium on Accepting Subdivision Preliminary Plats  
2. Waste Management Contract Amendment 
3. Adopt FY 2023 Curbside Budget 
4. Adopt Solid Waste Curbside Fee for 2022 Tax Billing 
5. Adopt FY 2023 General Fund Budget 
6. Adopt FY 2023 Landfill Budget 
7. Adopt Jasper County Wide M&O Millage Rate for 2022 Tax Billing 
8. Adopt Jasper Memorial Hospital Millage Rate 
9. Adopt Fire Protection Special District Fee for 2022 Tax Billing 
10. LOST Renegotiation 
11. Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings  

 
 

XI.   County Attorney Items 

XII.   County Manager Update 

 
 

Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  
§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 
and discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 
in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  
 
XIV. Adjournment  
  



 
 
 
Public Hearing –  
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  BOC 
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Extension of an Existing Moratorium 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Commissioners will hold a Public Hearing on the following: 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held for the Extension of an Existing Moratorium on the                
acceptance of  Residential Preliminary Plat applications. 

 
 
  



Business Item 1” 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Extension of current Moratorium on Accepting Subdivision Preliminary Plats 
 
 
Summary:  
 
The Board of Commissioners to consider extending the moratorium on accepting Subdivision Preliminary Plats 
until October 3, 2022. 
 
The extended moratorium would expire at 11:59 P.M. on October 3, 2022.  Should the Board of Commissioners 
adopt new ordinances prior to October 3, 2022, the Board may take action to remove the moratorium prior to 
the expiration date. 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
On January 3, 2022 at the regular monthly meeting, the BOC placed a moratorium on the acceptance of 
Subdivision Preliminary Plats. 
 
The current moratorium is in effect until 5:00 P.M. on Tuesday, July 5, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:  Box Ad for newspaper to announce the Public Hearing for the extension.  This has already been sent and 
published. 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Motion to approve Resolution #2022.06.30A to extend the existing moratorium on the acceptance of Residential 
Subdivision Preliminary Plats until October 3, 2022 at 11:59 p.m. 
  





RESOLUTION NO. – 2022.06.30A  
 
A   RESOLUTION   OF   THE   JASPER   COUNTY   BOARD   OF   COMMISSIONERS 
EXTENDING  UNTIL  OCTOBER 3, 2022  AN  EXISTING  MORATORIUM  ON  THE 
ACCEPTANCE OF APPLICATIONS OF RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 
PRELIMINARY PLATS 
 
 

WHEREAS, Division 2., Agricultural and Residential Districts of the Code of Ordinances 
Part II, Chapter 119 entitled Zoning ("Zoning Ordinance"), and in Chapter 105 entitled 
Development Standards and Regulations that residential development is permitted in applicable 
zoning districts; and 
 

WHEREAS, these sections contain various regulations and restrictions with respect to 
residential development, including allowed densities, lot size, accessory uses, accessory uses 
permitted upon the issuance of a conditional use permit, and other development conditions and 
standards; and 
 

WHEREAS, recent development trends in the County suggest that current trends for 
residential development may not be adequately addressed by the current Zoning Ordinance and the 
Development Standards and Regulations; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board has directed the Planning and Zoning Department to evaluate 
possible revisions to the Code of Ordinances with respect to new planned residential development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Department is in the process of reviewing 
current status and preparing possible amendments to the Code of Ordinances; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Supreme Court has held that a moratorium with respect to application 
of a Zoning Ordinance may be put in place for a reasonable period of time without the necessity 
of complying with notice requirements of the Georgia Zoning Procedures Law ("ZPL"); and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 3, 2022, the Board adopted a moratorium barring through and 
until July 5, 2022, the acceptance of applications for Residential Subdivision Preliminary Plat 
Petitions; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Board will conduct a properly noticed public hearing on June 30, 
2022, to consider the possible extension of the Existing Moratorium; 
 

WHEREAS, the Board finds to further extend a moratorium barring until October 3, 
2022, the acceptance of applications of Residential Subdivision Preliminary Plat Petitions to be 
reasonably necessary, the least restrictive means available, a reasonable exercise of the County's 
police power, and in the best interest of the public health, safety and welfare; and 
 

 



 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of Jasper 
County, Georgia as follows: 
 
 
1. The Jasper County Board of Commissioners does hereby enact a moratorium barring until 
October 3, 2022, the acceptance of applications of Residential Subdivision Preliminary Plat 
Petitions. 
 
2. The moratorium imposed by this Resolution shall terminate on the earliest date of (1) October 3, 
2022 at 11:59 p.m.; (2) approval by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners of an additional 
moratorium after a public hearing; or (3) the adoption of an amendment to the current language of 
the Zoning Ordinance and the Development Standards and Regulations. 
 
3. This Resolution shall be effective upon a majority vote by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
 
 
So resolved this 30th day of June 2022, the public's health, safety and welfare demanding it. 
 
 
 
 
 

JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Bruce Henry, Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Sharon Robinson, County Clerk 



















 
 
 
 
Business Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Curbside 
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Waste Management Contract Amendment 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Current Contract Fee  $12.67 per cart per month – Annual Fee - $152.04 
Expires June 30, 2022. 
 
Amended Contract Fee $15.42 per cart per month – Annual Fee - $185.04 
Three Year Contract Effective July 1, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Approve Waste Management Amended Contract as presented. 
  



1 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT 
 

THIS FOURTH AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT (“Amendment”) is made and 
entered into as of the _____ day of ___________, 2022, by and between the Jasper County, 
Georgia, (the “County”), and Georgia Waste Systems, LLC, successor in interest to Advanced 
Disposal Services Atlanta, LLC (the “Company or Waste Management”).  The County and the 
Company are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Parties.”  

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
 WHEREAS, the Parties entered into that certain contract dated January 8, 2007, as 
previously amended in the First, Second and Third Amendments, to secure the services of the 
Company to operate a waste hauling service for the County (collectively “the Contract”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to further extend the term and document Company’s 
compensation during the extended term, and certain other provisions of the Contract;   
 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual premises contained herein and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the parties hereto, each intending to be legally bound, do hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. The Contract is hereby extended for an additional period of up to three (3) one-year periods 
beginning July 1, 2022.  Either party may provide written notice by certified mail to the other party 
at least sixty days (60 days) prior to July 1 of each year of its intent not to renew for the ensuing 
annual term.  Otherwise, the Contract will automatically renew for an additional one year term for 
up to three total renewal periods. The term of the Contract may be further extended upon the mutual 
agreement of the parties expressed in writing prior to the expiration of the Contract.  
 
3. Effective July 1, 2022, the compensation payable by the County to Company for service 
provided to Residential Units with once per week service shall be $15.42 per month, including 
disposal.  The rate for an additional cart is $12.00 per month.  Company shall only be required to 
collect Cart contents.  This rate shall continue to be adjusted according to the terms of the Contract. 
   
4. The CPI adjustment on all of Company’s compensation shall continue to take effect each 
July 1 during the term of the Contract beginning July 1, 2023.  The CPI index used for this extended 
term shall be 100% of the Consumer Price Index for Water, Sewer, and Trash CPI, Not Seasonally 
Adjusted, All Areas, (WST CPI) published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of 
Labor ("C.P.I.”).         
 
5. The definition of Force Majeure in the Contract shall be amended and replaced with the 
following language: 
 
 Except for the failure to make payment when due, neither Party shall be in default for its 
failure to perform or delay in performance caused by an Uncontrollable Circumstance, and the 
affected Party shall be excused from performance during the occurrence of such events. For 
purposes of this Agreement, “Uncontrollable Circumstances” means any act of terrorism, act of 
God, landslides, lightning, forest fires, storms, floods, typhoons, hurricanes, severe weather, 
freezing, earthquakes, volcanic eruptions, other natural disasters or the imminent threat of such 



2 

natural disasters, epidemics and pandemics, labor shortages, quarantines, civil disturbances, acts 
of the public enemy, wars, blockades, public riots, labor unrest (e.g., strikes, lockouts, or other 
labor disturbances), declarations or acts of domestic or foreign governments, or governmental 
restraint or other causes, whether of the kind enumerated or otherwise, and whether foreseeable or 
unforeseeable, that are not reasonably within the control of a Party. 
 
6. Uncontrollable Circumstances. The services described herein do not include the collection 
and disposal of any increased volume of waste resulting from a flood, pandemic, hurricane or 
similar or different acts of God over which the Company has no control.  In the event of such a 
flood, hurricane or other acts of God, Company and the County shall negotiate the payment to be 
made to Company for additional services, if the Company and County agree that the increased 
volume is to be handled by the Company.  Further, if the County and Company reach such 
agreement, the County shall grant the Company variances in routes and schedules as deemed 
necessary by the Company.  
 
7.   Notices and Communication 
 
Jasper County Board of Commissioners 
County Manager 
126 West Greene Street, Suite 110 
Monticello, GA  31064 
 
Waste Management 
154 Dundee Drive 
Milledgeville, GA  31061 
 
With a copy to:  Waste Management Legal Department 
   800 Capitol Street, Suite 3000 
   Houston, TX  77002 
 
8. Except as expressly set forth herein or as necessary to carry out the terms of this 
Amendment, no amendment of the terms of the Contract is intended hereby and all of the terms 
and conditions of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
9. This Fourth Amendment is hereby incorporated into the Contract, which together with the 
Contract, and prior amendments, and any Exhibits attached thereto or hereto, contains the entire 
agreement between the parties as to the matters contained herein.  Any oral representations or 
modifications concerning this Amendment and the Contract shall be of no force and effect. 
  



3 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hand and seal as of the date 
first above written. 
 
      JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
      By: ________________________________ 
________________________________  
Attest      Its: _________________________________ 
 
 
 
 

GEORGIA WASTE SYSTEMS, LLC 
 

By: __________________________________ 
_________________________________ 
Attest    

Print Name: _________________________ 
 



 
 
Business Item 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Curbside  
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Adopt FY 2023 Solid Waste Curbside Fund Budget 
 
 
Summary:  
 
The Jasper County BOC needs to adopt the FY 2023 Solid Waste Curbside Fund Budget. 
 
Proposed FY 2023 Curbside Budget $1,044,846.00. 
 
  
 
 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County BOC operates on a fiscal year basis beginning July1 and ending June 30 of each year. 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Adopt Resolution # 2022.06.30B setting the Jasper County BOC FY 2023 Solid Waste Curbside Fund Budget 
in the amount of $1,044,846.00 as presented. 
 
 
  



04520 CURBSIDE

 FY 2021                 
12 Months 

Actual 

 FY 2021 
Approved 
Budget  

 FY 2022   9 
Months  Actual 

 FY 2022   12 
Months  

Annualized 

 FY 2022 
Approved 
Budget 

 FY 2023 
Proposed 
Budget   Inc/(Dec) % Variance

00051 PERSONAL SERVICE AND EMP BEN.
511100 SALARIES & WAGES
511140 COMPENSATED ABSENCES
511190 OVERTIME PAY
512400 RETIREMENT
512100 INSURANCE-CO PORTION
512200 FICA
512600 UNEMPLOYEMENT
512700 WORKERS' COMPENSATION
512800 REIMBURSEMENT TO HUMAN RESOURCES 20,000        20,000       15,000             20,000            20,000       20,000          -              0%
TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICE AND EMP BEN. 20,000        20,000       15,000             20,000            20,000       20,000          -                  

00052 CONTRACTED SERVICES
521200 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 751,106      745,642     539,975               745,642    1,010,688 265,046   36%
522210 VEHICLE & EQUIP REP & MAINT   
522400 ANNUAL SUPPORT TBS   
523140 GENERAL LIABILITY   
523150 VEHICLE LIABILITY   
523160 PROPERTY LIABILITY 51               56              42                    56           56              -              0%
523200 COMMUNICATION (T/C/P)   
523210 POSTAGE   
523600 DUES & FEES   
523700 EDUCATION AND TRAINING   
523800 DEBIT/CREDIT CARD SERVICE 161             108               
572090 BANK CHARGES -                
TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 751,318      745,698     540,125           -                     745,698     1,010,744     265,046      

00053 SUPPLIES
531270 VEHICLES-GAS   
531710 OFFICE SUPPLIES   
531720 COMPUTER SUPPLIES   
539999 GENERAL EXPENSES   
TOTAL SUPPLIES   

00054 CAPITAL OUTLAYS
540000 CAPITAL OUTLAY   
540001 COMPUTER,SOFTWARE & REL   
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY   

00057 Other Costs
574100 Bad Debt -              
Total Other Costs -              

00061 OTHER SOURCES/(USES)
611000 TNSR TO/(FR) GENERAL FUND 14,102        14,544       10,577             14,544       14,102          (442)        -3%
TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) 14,102        14,544       10,577             -                     14,544       14,102          (442)            

TOTAL 04520 CURBSIDE 785,420      780,242     565,702           20,000            780,242     1,044,846     264,604      

DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET- FY 2023
 



RESOLUTION NO. – 2022.06.30B 
 

BUDGET RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Jasper County has received a proposed Fiscal Year 2023 
Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, this budget lists proposed expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2022, July 1, 2022 to June 30, 
2023, and lists the anticipated revenues and fund balance to be derived there from; and  

 
WHEREAS, this budget is a balanced budget, so that projected revenues and fund balance where stated 
for each fund equal proposed expenditure appropriations of $1,044,846.00 for a full Fiscal Year 2023 
July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023; and 
 
ADOPTED by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners, this 30th day of June 2022. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Bruce Henry, Chairman 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Gerald Stunkel, Vice Chairman 
 

      
      ___________________________________ 
      Sheila Jones, Commissioner 
 
      
      ___________________________________ 
      Don Jernigan, Commissioner 
 
      
      ___________________________________ 
      Steven Ledford, Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023, 
FOR THE PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023, FOR THE 
SOLID WASTE CURBSIDE FUND;  
 



Business Item 4: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Curbside 
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Adopt Solid Waste Curbside Fee for 2022 Tax Billing  
 
 
Summary:  
  
The Jasper County BOC needs to set the annual Solid Waste Curbside Fee for all parcels with livable residential 
structures for the 2022 Tax Billing.  
 
 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County BOC provides solid waste curbside pickup and disposal for the unincorporated area of the 
County and the incorporated area of the City of Shady Dale. 
 
Solid Waste Curbside Fee on 2021 Tax Billing     $151.31 
2021 Tax Billing Fee was based on Expiring Contract Annual Fee of $152.04 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
Current Contract Fee  $12.67 per cart per month – Annual Fee - $152.04 
Expires June 30, 2022. 
 
Amended Contract Fee $15.42 per cart per month – Annual Fee - $185.04 
Three Year Contract Effective July 1, 2022. 
 
 
$20,000 - BOC Employee Admin Cost Allocated to the Curbside Fund for Customer Service Support. 
Total Cart Units Currently Billed by Waste Management – 5462 
$20,000.00 distributed over 5462 = $3.66 Admin Cost per Cart 
 
Amended Contract Annual Cost    $185.04 
BOC Employee Admin Allocated Cost   $    3.66 
Total Annual Cost per Cart to County   $188.70 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board Discretion 
  



Business Item 5: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Adopt FY 2023 General Fund Budget 
 
 
Summary:  
  
The Jasper County BOC needs to officially adopt the FY 2023 General Fund Budget. 
 
Proposed FY 2023 General Fund Budget $12,843,371 
 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County BOC operates on a fiscal year basis beginning July1 and ending June 30 of each year. 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Adopt Resolution # 2022.06.30C setting the Jasper County BOC FY 2023 General Fund Budget in the amount 
of $12,843,371.00 as presented. 
 
  



 FY 2022 APPROVED 
BUDGET 

 FY 2023 
PROPOSED 
BUDGET 

 FY 2023 
INC/DEC 

 % VAR 

1110 BOC 263,749 277,536 13,787 5.2%
1300 EXECUTIVE 205,750 210,517 4,767 2.3%
1400 ELECTIONS 30,779 38,284 7,505 24.4%
1401 REGISTRAR 68,634 71,960 3,326 4.8%
1510 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 199,523 239,374 39,851 20.0%
1540 HR 104,650 96,263 (8,387) -8.0%
1542 PAYROLL CONTINGENCY -                       36,000 36,000
1545 TAX COMMISSIONER 253,836 258,706 4,870 1.9%
1550 TAX ASSESSOR 318,824 335,100 16,276 5.1%
1565 GOVERNMENT BUILDINGS 166,088 166,600 512 0.3%

2150 SUPERIOR COURT 409,023 402,750 (6,273) -1.5%
2200 DISTRICT ATTORNEY 57,036 58,294 1,258 2.2%
2400 MAGISTRATE COURT 138,836 143,763 4,927 3.5%
2450 PROBATE COURT 202,262 207,153 4,891 2.4%
2600 JUVENILE COURT 5,000 4,000 (1,000) -20.0%
3100 COURTS OTHER COSTS 117,866 118,526 660 0.6%
3300 SHERIFF 2,536,643 2,633,731 97,088 3.8%
3326 JAIL 1,015,987 1,097,713 81,726 8.0%
3360 COURTHOUSE SECURITY 113,563 120,368 6,805 6.0%
3550 FIRE RESCUE 1,296,952 1,418,192 121,240 9.3%
3700 CORONER 25,895 31,620 5,725 22.1%
3900 ANIMAL CONTROL 157,474 160,439 2,965 1.9%
3920 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 14,463 15,300 837 5.8%
4200 ROADS AND BRIDGES 2,007,719 2,177,290 169,571 8.4%
6100 RECREATION 272,969 340,028 67,059 24.6%
6200 SENIOR CENTER 250,966 305,452 54,486 21.7%
7100 COUNTY EXTENSION 66,887 68,783 1,896 2.8%
7410 PLANNING AND ZONING 261,023 307,333 46,310 17.7%

SUBTOTAL - DEPARTMENTS 10,562,397           11,341,075          778,678         7.4%

AGENCIES/COMPONENT UNITS 974,777 1,108,529 133,752 13.7%

DEBT SERVICE 396,970 393,767 (3,203) -0.8%
SUBTOTAL - AGENCIES & DEBT SERVICE 1,371,747            1,502,296            130,549         9.5%

GRAND TOTAL GENERAL FUND 11,934,144           12,843,371          909,227         7.6%

DRAFT AT 6-29-2022

REVENUE PROJECTION WITH FINAL ROLLBACK - 12.159 12,853,663$         
12,843,371           

NET DIFFERENCE 10,292$                

GENERAL FUND             

GRAND TOTAL - GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES



RESOLUTION NO. – 2022.06.30C  
 

BUDGET RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Jasper County has received a proposed Fiscal Year 2023 
Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, this budget lists proposed expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2023, July 1, 2022 to June 30, 
2023, proposes certain levies, and charges to finance these expenditures, and lists the anticipated 
revenues and fund balance to be derived there from; and  

 
WHEREAS, the tax millage to support this budget are set and incorporated in the revenue estimates; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, this budget is a balanced budget, so that projected revenues and fund balance where stated 
for each fund equal proposed expenditure appropriations of $12,843,371.00 for a full Fiscal Year 2023 
July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, there are certain recommended maintenance and operating costs, transportation and road 
improvements,  
 

NOW,THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this budget be and is hereby approved and the several 
items of revenues projected in this budget in the amounts anticipated are adopted and that the several 
amounts recommended in the budget for each fund as proposed expenditures are hereby appropriated to 
the departments, function or purposed named; and 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023, 
FOR THE PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023, FOR THE 
GENERAL FUND; APPROPRIATING AMOUNTS SHOWN AS 
EXPENDITURES, ADOPTING SEVERAL ITEMS OF ANTICIPATED 
REVENUE PROJECTIONS; PROHIBITING EXPENDITURES TO 
EXCEED ACTUAL BUDGETED APPROPRIATIONS FOR SAID 
EXPENDITURES; CERTAIN RECOMMENDED MAINTENANCE 
AND OPERATION COSTS, TRANSPORTATION AND ROAD 
IMPROVEMENTS,  



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the various maintenance and operating costs,  personnel changes, 
transportation and road improvements, and other capital expenditures for all county departments which 
are a part of this budget are hereby adopted; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the expenditures shall not exceed the appropriations authorized by 
this budget or any subsequent amendments thereto and that expenditure for the fiscal year shall not 
exceed funding available. 
 
ADOPTED by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners, this 30th day of June 2022. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Bruce Henry, Chairman 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Gerald Stunkel, Vice Chairman 
 

      
      ___________________________________ 
      Sheila Jones, Commissioner 
 
      
      ___________________________________ 
      Don Jernigan, Commissioner 
 
      
      ___________________________________ 
      Steven Ledford, Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 
 

 
 
 



 
 
Business Item 6: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Landfill 
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Adopt FY 2023 Landfill Budget 
 
 
Summary:  
  
The Jasper County BOC needs to officially adopt the FY 2023 Landfill Fund Budget. 
 
Proposed FY 2023 Landfill Budget $267,915.00 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County BOC operates on a fiscal year basis beginning July1 and ending June 30 of each year. 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Adopt Resolution # 2022.06.30D setting the Jasper County BOC FY 2023 Landfill Fund Budget in the amount 
of $267,915.00 as presented. 
  



04530 LANDFILL

 FY 2021                 
12 Months 

Actual 

 FY 2021 
Approved 
Budget  

 FY 2022   
9 Months  

Actual 

 FY 2022   
12 Months  
Annualized 

  FY 2022 
Budget 

versus 12 
Month 

annualized   

 FY 2022 
Approved 
Budget 

 FY 2023 
Proposed 
Budget   Inc/(Dec) % Variance Comments FY 2023

00051 PERSONAL SERVICES AND EMP BEN.
511100 SALARIES & WAGES       50,120 30,000     41,280     56,488      (26,488)     30,000     101,560   71,560     239% Based on Staffing for 1 Free Month
511120 COMPENSATED ABSENCES -               -              -               -               -              -              -               
512100 INSURANCE- CO PORTION (1,244)      1,200       -              -               1,200        1,200       -              (1,200)      -100%
512150 LIFE INSURANCE -               -              -               -               -              -              -               
512200 FICA 3,580        2,295       3,064       4,193        (1,898)       2,295       7,770       5,475       239%
512400 RETIREMENT 1,140        1,800       1,825       2,497        (697)          1,800       2,000       200          11%
512600 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE -               -              -               -               -              -               
512700 WORKER'S COMP -               -              -               -               -              -              -               

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES AND EMP BEN. 53,595     35,295    46,169    63,178      (27,883)    35,295    111,330   76,035      

04530 LANDFILL

  FY 2021   
12 Months 

Actual  

  FY 2021 
Approved 
Budget  

 FY 2022   
9 Months  

Actual 

  FY 2022   
12 Months  
Annualized  

  FY 2022 
Budget 

versus 12 
Month 

annualized   

  FY 2022 
Approved 
Budget  

  FY 2023  
Request    Inc/(Dec)  

 % 
Variance Comments FY 2023

00052 CONTRACTED SERVICES
521200 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 128,743    100,000   99,402     113,402     (13,402)     100,000   65,000     (35,000)    -35% TPE - $65k -FY22
521210 ATTORNEY FEES -               -              -              -               -               -              -               
521280 ENGINEERING -               -              -              -               -               -              -               
522110 TIPPING FEE 15,618      15,000     14,135     18,847      (3,847)       15,000     17,000     2,000       13% Added volume
522210 VEHICLE & EQUIP REP & MAINT 50,631      17,150     61,173     66,173      (49,023)     17,150     20,000     2,850       17% Equipment Age and Condition
523140 GENERAL LIABILITY 537           573          493          657           (84)           573          660          87           15% Current allocation $54.79 per month
523160 PROPERTY LIABILITY 113           124          93           124           0               124          120          (4)            -3% Current allocation $10.30 per month
522250 SOFTWARE MAINT - ANNUAL -               -              -              -               -               -              -              -               
522270 CLOSURE COST 48,710      15,000     48,000     -               15,000      15,000     15,000     -              15,000     
523200 COMMUNICATION (T/C/P) 824           1,100       619          825           275           1,100       1,100       -              0%  
523210 POSTAGE 8              -              -              -               -               -              -                
523300 ADVERTISING -               -              -              -               -               -              -               
523600 DUES & FEES -               -              -              -               -               -              -               
523700 EDUCATION AND TRAINING -               500          260          347           153           500          500          -              0%  
523800 DEBIT/CREDIT CARD SERVICE 133           -              108          144           (144)          -              -              #DIV/0!
523910 TIRE DISPOSAL COST 10,836      -              3,281       4,375        (4,375)       -              4,000       4,000        

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 256,152   149,447   227,564   204,894    (55,447)    149,447   123,380   (26,067)   #DIV/0!  

00053 SUPPLIES
531100 GENERAL SUPPLIES 1,090        800          1,155       1,540        (740)          800          800          -              0%  
531230 ELECTRICITY 3,537        2,500       2,845       3,793        (1,293)       2,500       2,900       400          16%  
531270 VEHICLE-GAS 7,517        6,000       5,388       7,183        (1,183)       6,000       7,900       1,900       32% plus 10% FY 22 act
531710 OFFICE SUPPLIES 626           500          282          376           124           500          500          -              0%  
531720 COMPUTER SUPPLIES -               -              -              -               -               -              -                
533320 GRAVEL 8,441        4,000       7,250       9,666        (5,666)       4,000       3,000       (1,000)      -25%  

TOTAL SUPPLIES 21,211     13,800    16,919    22,559      (8,759)      13,800    15,100    1,300        

00054 CAPITAL OUTLAYS
540000 CAPITAL OUTLAY -           -              -              -               -               -              -              -              

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY -           -             -             -              -               -             -             -             

DEPRECIATION & BANK CHARGES
561000 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 18,104      18,105     -              18,105      -               18,105     18,105     -              0%
572090 BANK CHARGES -           -              -              -               -               -              -              -                
582000 INTEREST -           1,929       -              -               1,929        1,929       -              (1,929)      -100%

TOTAL DEPRECIATION & BANK CHARGES 18,104     20,034    -         18,105      1,929       20,034    18,105    (1,929)      
 

Total 04530 LANDFILL 349,061   218,576   290,652   308,736    (90,160)    218,576   267,915   49,339     
 

 DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET- FY 2023  



RESOLUTION NO. – 2022.06.30D 
 

BUDGET RESOLUTION 

 
 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Jasper County has received a proposed Fiscal Year 2023 
Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, this budget lists proposed expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2022, July 1, 2022 to June 30, 
2023, and lists the anticipated revenues and fund balance to be derived there from; and  

 
WHEREAS, this budget is a balanced budget, so that projected revenues and fund balance where stated 
for each fund equal proposed expenditure appropriations of $267,915.00 for a full Fiscal Year 2023 July 
1, 2022 to June 30, 2023; and 
 
ADOPTED by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners, this 30th day of June 2022. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Bruce Henry, Chairman 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Gerald Stunkel, Vice Chairman 
 

      
      ___________________________________ 
      Sheila Jones, Commissioner 
 
      
      ___________________________________ 
      Don Jernigan, Commissioner 
 
      
      ___________________________________ 
      Steven Ledford, Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023, 
FOR THE PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2023, FOR THE 
LANDFILL FUND;  



Business Item 7: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Adopt Jasper County Wide M&O Millage Rate for 2022 Tax Billing 
 
 
Summary:  
  
Rollback for 2022 for BOC County Wide Millage Rate  12.159 
Proposed 2022 BOC County Wide M&O Millage Rate  12.159 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
2021 BOC County Wide M&O Millage Rate   13.820 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Adopt Resolution # 2022.06.30E authorizing the Jasper County Tax Commissioner to levy a Jasper County 
Wide M&O Millage Rate of 12.159 for the 2022 Tax Billing. 
 
  





RESOLUTION # - 2022.06.30E  

 
JASPER COUNTY WIDE M&O TAX LEVY 2022 

WHEREAS, by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners, Jasper County, Georgia, 
held on June 30th, 2022, the following order passed. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, it is ordered by the said Board of 
Commissioners of Jasper County, on the 30th day of June, 2022, for the following levies: 

 
Jurisdiction      Rollback Rate  Levied Rate      
Jasper County Wide M&O     12.159   12.159  
 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the taxable property of Jasper County, Georgia as 

per the digest for the levy year of 2022 be the same rate as the levied rate from above The same 
levied rate from above shall be collected by the Tax Commissioner of Jasper County, Georgia.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution takes effect from and after its 

passage, the public requiring it.  This resolution shall be spread upon the minutes of the Board of 
Commissioners of Jasper County.   

 
 
___________________________________ 
Bruce Henry, Chairman 
 
___________________________________ 
Gerald Stunkel, Vice Chairman 

       
      ___________________________________ 
      Sheila Jones, Commissioner 
 
       
      ___________________________________ 
      Don Jernigan, Commissioner 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Steven Ledford, Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 



 
 
Business Item 8: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Adopt Jasper Memorial Hospital Millage Rate for 2022 Tax Billing 
 
 
Summary:  
  
Rollback for 2022 Jasper Memorial Hospital Millage Rate  .678 
Proposed 2022 Jasper Memorial Hospital Millage Rate  .678 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
2021 Jasper Memorial Hospital Millage Rate   .771 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Adopt Resolution # 2022.06.30F authorizing the Jasper County Tax Commissioner to levy a Hospital Millage 
Rate of .678 for the 2022 Tax Billing. 
  





RESOLUTION # - 2022.06.30F 

 
HOSPITAL TAX LEVY 2022 

WHEREAS, by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners, Jasper County, Georgia, 
held on June 30th, 2022, the following order passed. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, it is ordered by the said Board of 
Commissioners of Jasper County, on the 30th day of June, 2022, for the following levies: 

 
Jurisdiction      Rollback Rate  Levied Rate       
Hospital       .678   .678   
 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the taxable property of Jasper County, Georgia as 

per the digest for the levy year of 2022 be the same rate as the levied rate from above The same 
levied rate from above shall be collected by the Tax Commissioner of Jasper County, Georgia.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution takes effect from and after its 

passage, the public requiring it.  This resolution shall be spread upon the minutes of the Board of 
Commissioners of Jasper County.   

 
 
___________________________________ 
Bruce Henry, Chairman 
 
___________________________________ 
Gerald Stunkel, Vice Chairman 

       
      ___________________________________ 
      Sheila Jones, Commissioner 
 
       
      ___________________________________ 
      Don Jernigan, Commissioner 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Steven Ledford, Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 



Business Item 9: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Adopt Fire Protection Special District Fee for 2022 Tax Billing 
 
 
Summary:  
  
The Jasper County BOC needs to set the Annual Fire Protection Special District Fee for the 2022 Tax Billing. 
 
Total parcels in the Fire Protection Special District for 2022  1762 
 
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County BOC collects a Fire Protection Special District Fee on behalf of the Jasper County Water 
and Sewer Authority for all parcels located within the Fire Protection Special District being served fire 
protection by fire hydrants owned by the Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority. An annual payment made 
by the Jasper County BOC to the Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority pursuant to an MOU is funded by 
this fire protection special district fee. 
 
 
2021 Fire Protection Special District Fee  $28.63 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Approve the Fire Protection Special District Fee of $28.63 for the 2022 Tax Billing for all parcels located 
within the Fire Protection Special District. 
 
  



 
 
Business Item 10: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  BOC 
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: LOST Renegotiation 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
LOST Renegotiation Discussion including County’s negotiating committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board Discretion 
  



 
 
Business Item 11:  
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  BOC 
 
Date:   June 30, 2022 
 
Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board Discretion 
 


	MONTICELLO, GEORGIA

